

# Worcestershire Pension Fund Pensions Administration Strategy 2025

January 2025

# Table of Contents

Table of (	Contents1
1.	Introduction2
2.	Regulatory Framework2
3.	Purpose of the strategy2
4.	Objectives
5.	Administering Authority Roles and Responsibilities
6.	Scheme Employers roles and responsibilities
7.	Scheme Members roles and responsibilities7
8.	Service Performance Standards7
9.	Data Quality and Accuracy7
10.	Reporting and Monitoring
11.	Issue Resolution and Escalation9
12.	Employer Charges9
13.	Communications and Engagement10
14.	Review of the Administration Strategy11
15.	Further Information 11
Appendi	x A – Performance standards for the administering authority
• •	x B – Performance standards for the scheme employers (Key Performance rs)
••	x C – Detailed information regarding the roles and responsibilities of both the rering authority and scheme employers
ADMINIS	TERING AUTHORITIES' RESPONSIBILITIES
EMPLOY	ERS' RESPONSIBILITIES

# 1. Introduction

This Administration Strategy has been prepared in accordance with <u>Regulation 59 of the LGPS</u> regulations 2013 and sets out the approach and expectations for the delivery of pensions administration services of Worcestershire Pension Fund ("WPF" or "The Fund"), administered on behalf of Worcestershire County Council (the "Administering Authority"). It outlines the roles and responsibilities of both the administering authority and the scheme employers, with a focus on achieving a high standard of service, ensuring statutory compliance with, and supporting scheme members throughout their pension journey.

# 2. Regulatory Framework

The LGPS is primarily governed by the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 (the Regulations). There are a number of regulatory and legislative provisions in which compliance is collectively required to ensure the LGPS is managed in a way that is fair, transparent and sustainable for its members including:

- Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations
- Pensions Acts 1993, 1995, 2004, 2011 & 2014
- The Occupational & Personal Pension Schemes (Disclosure of Information) Regulations in force and as amended
- Public Service Pensions Act 2013 and associated record keeping legislation
- Freedom of Information Act 2000
- Equality Act 2010
- Data Protection Act 2018
- Finance Act 2013
- Relevant Health and Safety legislation
- Discretionary Compensation Regulations 2006
- LGPS (Transitional Provisions, Savings and Amendment) Regulations 2014
- LGPS (Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations 2016

This list is not exhaustive and other Legislation and Regulations may apply in certain circumstances. Where relevant, individual regulations are referenced throughout this document.

The LGPS is regulated by the Pensions Regulator (tPR). The Pensions Regulator published a <u>General Code of Practice</u> for Public Sector Pension Schemes that in itself is not law, but sets out their expectations of Pension Schemes to help Scheme Administrators comply with the law.

# 3. Purpose of the strategy

This strategy provides a comprehensive framework for the administration of the LGPS, setting clear expectations and responsibilities for both the administering authority and employers. The aim is to ensure efficient, effective, and accurate delivery of pension services to scheme members.

The key purpose of this strategy is to:

• Set out clear standards and expectations for administering the LGPS and our Scheme Employers.

- Ensure that all parties involved understand their roles and responsibilities.
- Promote timely and accurate processing of pension data.
- Establish a framework for effective communication and resolving issues as and when these may arise.
- Provide a process for establishing, measuring and improving performance of all parties.

### 4. Objectives

- **Effective Service Delivery:** Ensure all pension administration activities are carried out in accordance with legislative requirements and best practices.
- Accurate Record Keeping: Maintain accurate records for all scheme members, including employees, deferred members, and pensioners.
- **Clear Communication:** To encourage open and clear communication between the administering authority, employers, and scheme members.
- **Utilisation of technology to improve processes:** To explore and utilise developments in technology to support a more effective and efficient pensions administration service.
- **Timeliness:** Ensure the timely processing of all pension-related activities, including contributions, retirements, transfers, and updates to member records.
- **Training and Support:** Provide adequate training for employers to ensure they fulfil their responsibilities under the scheme

# 5. Administering Authority Roles and Responsibilities

The administering authority is responsible for the overall management of the LGPS on behalf of its scheme members. Key highlighted general responsibilities include:

- Administering benefits (e.g., retirements, transfers, deaths).
- Providing guidance and training for employers.
- Ensuring compliance with regulatory requirements.
- Handling member communications and ensuring that benefits are paid in accordance with the scheme rules.
- Providing regular performance reports.

#### Our General Responsibilities:

- To accurately record and update member records on the pension administration system
- To maintain the Fund website that enables our stakeholders to access all the information that they require to support effective decision making

- To invest in technology to support the Funds move towards utilising digital options as its preference to ensure a more efficient experience for our stakeholders
- To maintain an appropriate range of up-to-date forms and guides
- To produce newsletters for all members at least annually
- To provide guidance on the secure submission of data
- To chase up information that we have asked for
- To agree timescales for dealing with bulk work / queries
- To appoint and manage appropriate specialist professional services organisations
- To review the Pension Administration Strategy annually in consultation with employers

Our Governance Responsibilities:

- To operate with a <u>Pensions Committee</u> and a <u>Pension Board</u> including employer and employee representatives.
- To deliver appropriate training for the members of the Pensions Committee and Pension Board.
- To maintain a <u>Risk Register</u>
- To produce, operate according to and maintain a <u>Governance Policy Statement</u>
- To report any failures to <u>The Pensions Regulator</u> / <u>Scheme Advisory Board</u>
- To comply with any audit requirements / recommendations

Our Funding and investment responsibilities:

- To set out a clear and transparent <u>Funding Strategy Statement</u> and consult with employers on this.
- To manage employers' annual covenant reviews to help us to manage risk
- To produce and maintain the Fund's <u>Investment Strategy Statement</u>, <u>Climate Change</u> <u>Risk Strategy</u> and <u>Climate-Related Financial Disclosures</u>.

- To appoint and manage LGPS Central Limited, and the Fund's other investment managers.
- To monitor the performance of the Fund's assets
- To maintain our signatory status to the UK Stewardship Code 2020
- To produce <u>responsible investment</u> information to include information about climate change / climate risk monitoring and our Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) audits.
- To consult and inform employers which <u>investment pot</u> they have been allocated to and how this will be monitored / managed in future

Our Financial and Data Obligations responsibilities:

- To allocate the contributions received correctly to each employee record.
- To keep a log of contributions received from each employer
- To retain the right to charge interest at 7% for persistent and ongoing late payment in the following circumstances:
  - If employer contributions (including deficit recovery payments) are overdue (if they are not received a month later than the due date specified).
  - If any other payments are overdue (if they are not received by the due date specified).
- To pass on any fines levied by third parties or additional costs for example arising from members appealing their level of benefits after an employer has provided insufficient / incorrect data for us to apply the McCloud remedy arising from employer performance.
- To inform each employer of any new contribution bandings table in place from each April.
- To inform employers of any rechargeable items e.g. actuarial fees as they become due / at the end of financial year
- To produce and publish by 1 December <u>Annual Report and Financial Statements</u>
- To manage admission agreements / the processes for admitting new employers
- To manage the delivery of Financial Reporting Standards (FRS) / International Accounting Standards (IAS) information to employers
- To take account of covenant reviews in setting employer contribution rates

- To advise employers when strain costs / compensatory added years payments are due
- To retain the right to charge employers £100 per member for the additional administration costs associated with setting up shared cost additional voluntary contribution arrangements linked to salary sacrifice arrangements.

# Our annual return, triennial actuarial valuations and Annual Benefit Statement responsibilities:

- To process employer year end contribution returns within 1 month of receipt i.e. 31 May.
- To produce annual benefit statements (ABS) for all employee and deferred members by 31 August.
- To highlight annually if a member has exceeded their annual allowance and issue a Pension Savings Statement by statutory deadline
- To provide data to the Fund Actuary and Governments Actuary's Department to enable employer contribution rates to be accurately determined
- To provide an electronic copy of the <u>actuarial valuation report</u> and contributions certificate to each employer.
- See <u>Appendix A</u> for our responsibilities /KPI's for administrative processes
- See <u>Appendix C</u> for a more detailed description of all responsibilities and associated timescales in respect of the administering authority

# 6. Scheme Employers Roles and Responsibilities

Employers have a key role in ensuring the efficient operation of the LGPS. Their responsibilities include:

- Enrolling eligible employees in the scheme.
- Deducting contributions from employees' salaries and remitting them to the administering authority by the 19<sup>th</sup> of each month.
- Providing accurate and timely member data (e.g., changes in employment status, pay, hours).
- Responding promptly to data requests from the administering authority.
- Assisting in the calculation of member benefits when employees retire, transfer, or leave the scheme.
- Keeping up to date with any changes to pension regulations.

- Provide The Fund with their Statement of Policy on Discretions as set out in <u>Regulation</u> 60 of the LGPS Regulations 2013 and review it annually.
- See <u>Appendix B</u> for the key performance indicators in respect scheme employers' responsibilities to enable an efficient delivery of administrative processes
- See <u>Appendix C</u> for a more detailed description of all responsibilities and associated timescales in respect of the scheme employer

# 7. Scheme Members Roles and Responsibilities

Members are responsible for:

- Keeping their personal details up to date with their employer.
- Understanding their pension rights and responsibilities.
- Responding to any correspondence from the administering authority or employer in a timely manner.

The most efficient and effective way for members to keep their personal information up to date and review their pension benefits is by using the Funds self-service portal. All changes that members make within the portal will update the Funds pension system ensuring that both parties have the most accurate member information.

Functionality is always being investigated and added where it adds value to the members experience. Any major updates will be promoted via member communications and throughs scheme employers.

# 8. Service Performance Standards

To ensure that all parties are adhering to the notion of offering the best possible service to our members, the administering authority has set out within this document clear expectations of both the administering authority and the scheme employers participating.

To ensure that all parties adhere to the statutory compliance and meeting of the regulatory requirements the relevant performance standards/indicators for the administering authority and employers has been laid out in the appendices attached to this document.

As per the Funds processes, the performance standards have been agreed by the Pension Fund Committee and the Local Pension Board.

### 9. Data Quality and Accuracy

Employers are required to ensure the data provided to the administering authority is accurate and up to date. To achieve this, employers must:

- Provide monthly data using I-Connect as the primary method of submission by the 19<sup>th</sup> of each month.
- Conduct annual reconciliation to check for errors or inconsistencies in data.

- Report any changes in member data to the administering authority promptly.
- Address any data quality issues raised by the administering authority.
- Promote to their members the benefits of using the self-service portal available to them.

The administering authority will perform regular data checks and may issue requests for data correction or clarification if discrepancies are found.

Where data submissions are later than the 19<sup>th</sup> the administering authority will start its 'chase and escalation' procedure. Notifications will be issued to employers detailing what is required and how to make submission. Should the information not be received following the request, this will then be escalated to the person nominated as the overall responsibility for the employer.

The Fund submits a report annually to the Pensions Regulator. The information submitted to the Pensions Regulator includes scoring on our common data and scheme specific data held. The results of our scores are taken to the Local Pension Board and Pensions Committee meetings following submission.

To further ensure that accurate data is a primary focus the Fund has produced a <u>Data</u> <u>Improvement Plan</u> and is published on our <u>website</u>. The Data Improvement Plan outlines the Funds approach to ensuring data quality is kept as accurate as possible and highlights any area of improvement required and the action being taken. The Data Improvement Plan is reviewed annually.

# 10. Reporting and Monitoring

To maintain high standards, performance will be regularly monitored. The administering authority will provide the following reports:

• Quarterly Performance Reporting

To ensure that the Fund demonstrates it performance against the standards set out in this document, the performance information is taken to the Local Pension Board and the Pension Committee meetings.

The Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) achieved each quarter are held within the Business Plan document alongside other key administration updates completed over the quarter.

• Annual Report:

The Fund produces an Annual Report which details service delivery standards and its performance against the Funds KPIs and more.

Ad-hoc Reports:

Reports on specific issues or investigations where necessary.

Employers will be asked to provide feedback on the service they receive, which will help identify areas for development.

Reporting Breaches

The Fund has published a <u>Breaches of Law Policy</u> and the management of breaches will be acted upon in full compliance with this document.

## 11. Issue Resolution and Escalation

Most issues or complaints can be resolved informally through effective engagement between the Administering Authority and our Scheme Employers and Members. Should any issues arise, the following steps should be followed:

• Initial Resolution:

Scheme Employers or members should first contact the administering authority's pensions team to resolve the issue informally either via email to <u>pensions@worcestershire.gov.uk</u> or via telephone to the appropriate officer as per the Funds 'contact us' page on the website.

• Escalation:

If the issue remains unresolved, the matter can be escalated to a senior pensions officer within the administering authority. The relevant Senior Pensions Officers, as of January 2025, to handle any escalated issues in respect of pensions administration are as follows:

- o Stephen Gribbin (Membership Manager)
- Johann Hughes (Benefits Manager)
- Formal Complaint:

If the issue is still not resolved, a formal complaint can be lodged in accordance with the Internal Disputes Resolution Procedure (IDRP) by sending a completed <u>IDRP form</u> to the Head of Pensions Administration.

The IDRP process follows on from the informal process as detailed above. The Fund operates the IDRP process in accordance with the LGPS Regulations and stages 1 and 2 will be passed to the nominated adjudicator as soon as possible, within the expected timescales.

All IDRP cases received are communicated to the Local Pension Board and Pensions Committee within the Business Plan updates section.

# 12. Employer Charges

In some cases, employers may be charged for additional administrative services provided by the administering authority in accordance with <u>Regulation 70 of the LGPS Regulations 2013</u>. Charges may apply where:

- Employers consistently fail to meet data submission deadlines.
- There is a significant increase in workload due to employer error or omission.
- Employers request bespoke services outside of standard administrative functions.

• Where additional work has been requested outside of normal practices and an additional fee has been charged by a third-party provider. i.e. Fund Actuary etc.

# 13. Communications and Engagement

To ensure that we can effectively communicate changes and offer support to our scheme employers, as the administering authority, we require some our employers to provide us with a number of things:

- Provide us with <u>one named lead contact/account manager</u> who will liaise with ourselves on behalf of their organisation, coordinating delivery of all LGPS requirements across their whole organisation (i.e. Finance Manager, Human Resources representative, Business Manager, Chief Executive, Payroll Manager/representative etc.)
- To Maintain and supply us with an <u>Employers contacts at my organisation Excel</u> <u>spreadsheet</u> when there are changes within your organisation.

#### Communications Strategy

The Fund publishes a <u>Communications Strategy</u> which outlines how the Fund will provide all stakeholders with information. The Strategy is in place to ensure clear, consistent, and effective communication between the administering authority, scheme employers, and members of the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS). Effective communication is vital to ensure that all parties involved are informed, engaged, and able to make well-informed decisions about their pensions.

The strategy has been developed in accordance with Regulation 61 of the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 (Regulation 61). The document also reflects guidance from the Pensions Regulator.

The Communications Strategy outlines how we will communicate with scheme members, employers, and other stakeholders, the channels we will use, and the frequency of communication.

The current version of the communications strategy is held on the Funds website.

#### Training and Support

The administering authority will provide regular training for employers, covering topics such as:

- Changes in pension legislation.
- Data submission processes.
- Record-keeping best practices.
- Understanding pension benefits.

# 14. Review of the Administration Strategy

This strategy will be reviewed annually and taken to both the Local Pension Board and Pensions Committee to ensure it remains up to date with changes in legislation, best practices, and operational needs.

Employers will be consulted annually, and any significant amends will be highlighted for transparency.

A draft copy of pension administration strategy will be circulated to scheme employers and uploaded to the Funds website during the consultation period.

# 15. Further Information

As at 31 December 2024 we managed £3,753 million of worldwide assets on behalf of about 190 LGPS employers and 69,000 member records (22,676 active / 24,160 deferred / 19,727 pensioner).

As at 31 December 2024 we were estimated to be 106% funded.

We have a budget of c£1.9m for pensions administration and as of 31 December 2024 we have 41 FTE staff in our pension administration department. We work with the following:

AEW Barclays **BNY Mellon** Bridgepoint Grant Thornton UK LLP **Gresham House** Hermes Investment Management Hymans Robertson Igneo Invesco Real Estate Independent Investment Advisor (P Hebson) Legal and General Investment Management LGPS Central Limited Nomura Asset Management UK Ltd Northern Trust Scottish Widows Stonepeak Infrastructure Partners **UK Green Investment Bank** Venn Partners Walton Street Capital, LLC

#### Audit

We are subject to audit of our processes and internal controls. Employers are expected to fully comply with any requests for information from both internal and approved external auditors.

Any subsequent recommendations will be considered and where appropriate implemented with employer cooperation.

#### Benchmarking

We will regularly monitor our costs and service performance by benchmarking with other administering authorities. Details of the costs of administration, quality measures and standards of performance will be published in our <u>Annual Report and Financial Statements</u>.

#### Data Protection Act 2018

We are a Data Processer on behalf of the Administering Authority as Data Controller as part of the Data Protection Act 2018 which incorporates the General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR). This means we store, hold, and manage personal data in line with statutory requirements to enable us to provide pension administration services. To enable us to carry out our statutory duty, we are required to share information with certain bodies but will only do so in limited circumstances. More information about how we hold data and who we share it with can be found in our <u>Privacy Notice</u>.

#### Secure Data Transfer

We will follow Worcestershire County Council's (the Fund's Administering Authority) data security guidelines when sending any personal data, including its published data sharing policy. This means that member's personal data will only be transferred from one party to the other via an acceptable method specified by the Administering Authority which may include any of the following:

- Secure email.
- Paper forms signed by an authorising officer from the employer.
- Password protected Excel spreadsheets.
- Password protected portal.

#### FOR OFFICE USE ONLY:

Worcestershire Pension Fund Pension Administration Strategy Version: FINAL (of the fourth annual review)

Author: Richard Sultana, Head of Pensions Administration

Dated: 13/12/2024

Signed off at: Pensions Committee TBC (March 2025)

Task	Description	Timescales	Expected achievement as a percentage
New starter notification received	To accurately create member records on the pensions administration system	Within <u>10 working</u> <u>days</u> of notification	90%
Employee change of circumstances	To accurately record and update member records on the pensions administration systems	Within <u>10 working</u> days of notification	90%
Employee CARE updates	To update employee members' career average revalued earnings (CARE) accounts for the annual revaluation on 1 April	Within 30 days of notification	90%
Transfer In estimate/Quotation	To provide transfer in information to the member	Within 10 working days of all information required being received.	90%
Transfer Out estimate / quotation	To provide transfer out information	Within <u>10</u> working <u>days</u> of all information required being received.	90%
Divorce estimates	Where a request for divorce information including a cash equivalent transfer value (CETV) is received from the member, or the Court, we will provide the member with a schedule of our charges and then issue	The estimate will be issued within <u>45</u> working days of the receipt of the signed request from the member / receipt of the Court order.	90%
Actual Retirements	To issue individual quotations/information to members	Within <u>15 working</u> <u>days</u> after all information is required	90%
Actual Retirements	To issue employee members with a letter notifying them of their actual retirement benefits	Within <u>15 working</u> <u>days</u> following receipt of the completed Leavers Form or all information required	90%

# Appendix A – Performance standards for the administering authority

		being received	
Actual Retirements	To issue deferred members	Within <u>15 working</u>	90%
(deferred	with a letter notifying them	days following all	
members)	of their actual retirement	information required	
	benefits	being received	
Ill Health	To calculate and pay the	Within <u>15 working</u>	90%
Retirements	benefits to the member	days following all	
		information required	
		being received	
Deferred member	To provide members	Within <u>30 working</u>	90%
options	becoming a deferred	days of receipt of all	
	member with the options	the correct	
	available to them	information from the	
		employer via the	
		Leavers form	
Processing and	To process and pay a refund	Within <u>10 working</u>	90%
paying of a refund	payment to an eligible	<u>days</u> following	
to a member	member	receipt of all	
		relevant	
		documentation	
Death in	To provide an initial letter of	Within <u>5 working</u>	100%
service/member	acknowledgement to the	days following a	
	next of kin / informant	notification of death	
	following the death of a		
	member		
Death of	To provide a letter notifying	Within <u>10 working</u>	95%
service/member	dependents of benefits	days following	
	applicable	receipt of	
		identification/certifi	
		cates and relevant	
6 -	<b>T</b>	documentation	0.00%
Payment and	To make the payment of	Within <u>15 working</u>	90%
processing of	lump sum to the members	days following	
retirement lump nominated bank account		receipt of	
sum		completed	
		retirement forms and relevant	
		certificates received	
		certificates received	

# Appendix B – Performance standards for the scheme employers (Key Performance Indicators)

Task	Description	Timescales
New starter notification	To supply the fund	Within <u>4 weeks</u> or at the
issued to Fund	accurate new member	members' start date or within
	data, using the <u>Pension</u>	<u>14 days</u> of the first time the
	Starter Form / interface/	new employee is included on
	I-Connect submission	the employer's payroll run.
	within 4 weeks or at the	
	members' start date or	
	within 14 days of the first	
	-	
	time the new employee is included on the	
	employer's payroll run.	
Employee change of	To ensure that we are	Within <u>4 weeks</u> of the change
circumstances	informed of any changes in	
	the circumstances of	
	employees, by updating the I-	
	Connect submission or	
	completing the <u>Employer</u>	
	Notification of Changes	
	relating to Pensionable	
	Employment Form / Leavers	
	Form / Ill Health Form / 50:50	
	cancel form / 50:50 Option	
	Form / etc. within 4 weeks of the change	
Retirement estimates	To provide pay and other	For individual estimates
	relevant information required	Within <u>10 working days</u> of the
	for the fund to produce the	request, or for bulk / group
	estimate	requests by an agreed
	estimate	timescale with the Fund
Transfer In estimates	To provide pay and other	For individual estimates
	relevant information	
		Within <u>10 working days</u> of the request, or for bulk / group
	requested by the Fund	
		requests by an agreed
Transford C. 1. 1.	Te successful to the	timescale with the Fund
Transfer Out estimates	To provide pay and other	For individual estimates
	relevant information	Within <u>10 working days</u> of the
	requested by the Fund	request, or for bulk / group
		requests by an agreed
		timescale with the Fund
Divorce estimates	To provide pay and other	For individual estimates
	relevant information	Within <u>10 working days</u> of the
	requested by the Fund	request.
Actual retirements	To submit the appropriate	Within <u>5 working days</u> of the
	Leavers Form and details	leave date
	such as the maximum strain	

other exit payments.	
	Within <u>5 working days</u> of the
Leavers Form, ensuring all	members leave date
relevant information is	
included on the form.	
To send us notification of	Within <u>6 weeks</u> of joining
any eligible employees	
subject to automatic	
enrolment, who opt out of	
the LGPS	
To inform us	Ideally as soon as possible
immediately of an	but within <u>5 working days</u> at
employee who has	most
died via telephone	
or email and	
provide a	
notification of	
death in service	
alongside a	
leavers form	
To communicate	Members must elect to make
to employees the	PACs within 30 days of
option of SCAPCs	returning to work but
to cover periods of	employers have the option to
'lost pensions' and	extend this as per their
the timeframe they	employers policy statement
must elect to	on discretions
purchase a SCAPC	
	included on the form. To send us notification of any eligible employees subject to automatic enrolment, who opt out of the LGPS To inform us immediately of an employee who has died via telephone or email and provide a notification of death in service alongside a leavers form To communicate to employees the option of SCAPCs to cover periods of 'lost pensions' and the timeframe they must elect to

# Appendix C – Detailed information regarding the roles and responsibilities of both the administering authority and scheme employers

### ADMINISTERING AUTHORITIES' RESPONSIBILITIES

#### New starts - our responsibilities:

To accurately create member records on the pension administration system within 40 working days of notification from an employer of a new entrant to the LGPS.

#### Changes in circumstances for employee members - our responsibilities:

To accurately record and update member records on the pensions administration systems within 10 working days of completed notification

#### Employee members – our responsibilities:

To update employee members' career average revalued earnings (CARE) accounts for the annual revaluation on 1 April.

#### Transfer in / out estimates – our responsibilities:

To provide transfer in information to the member within 10 working days of all information required being received.

To provide transfer out information within 10 working days of all information required being received.

#### Divorce estimates - our responsibilities:

Where a request for divorce information including a cash equivalent transfer value (CETV) is received from the member, or the Court, we will provide the member with a schedule of our charges and then issue the estimate within 45 working days of the receipt of the signed request from the member / receipt of the Court order.

#### Outsourcing estimates - our responsibilities:

To provide guidance to and the estimated fees (these are likely to be at least £5,000) that will be incurred by current employers participating in the LGPS who are considering outsourcing.

#### Actual retirements - our responsibilities:

To issue individual quotations / information within 15 working days after all information required to process a quotation has been received.

To issue employee members with a letter notifying them of their actual retirement benefits within 15 working days following receipt of the completed <u>Leavers Form</u>.

To issue deferred members with a letter notifying them of their actual retirement benefits within 15 working days following receipt of all documentation from the member.

#### Ill health retirements - our responsibilities:

within 15 working days following receipt of all documentation.

To assist employers in discharging their responsibility to review Tier 3 ill health cases at 18 months.

To assist employers to understand the differences between the benefits paid on death in service and the benefits paid on death in retirement for members who are terminally ill.

#### Members leaving employment before retirement - our responsibilities:

To provide members with <u>Opt Out forms</u> and information about going 50/50 / refunds / becoming deferred / transfers out.

To provide members becoming deferred with the options available to them within 30 working days of receipt of all the correct information from the employer via the <u>Leavers Form</u>.

To process and pay a refund within 10 working days to an eligible member following receipt of all relevant documentation.

#### Deferred members - our responsibilities:

To updated deferred members' benefits for the annual pensions increase award / annual CARE revaluation as appropriate.

To provide estimates of benefits that may be payable and any resulting employer costs within 15 working days of request.

#### Death in service – our responsibilities:

To provide an initial letter of acknowledgement to the next of kin / informant within 5 working days following a notification of death.

To provide a letter notifying dependents of benefits within 10 working days following receipt of identification / certificates and relevant documentation.

To expedite the payment of any benefits in an appropriate and caring manner.

# Additional voluntary contributions (AVCs), Additional Pension Contributions (APCs) and shared cost APCs (SCAPCs) – our responsibilities:

To appoint and manage an in-house AVC provider.

To direct members / employers to information on these options as requested.

#### Pensioners – our responsibilities:

To make payment of any lump sum within 23 working days of receipt of all relevant fully completed retirement forms and certificates from the member, or retirement date if later. To pay pension payments on the last working day of each month following retirement unless this falls on a weekend or bank holiday when the payment will be made on the last working day before.

To pay LGPS benefits to their qualifying dependents.

To obtain annual life certificates from certain members e.g. those either resident overseas or with ongoing power of attorneys.

To pay Her Majesty's Revenue & Customs.

To increase pensions annually if appropriate.

To provide payslips / P60s.

#### Complaints / adjudication of disagreements – our responsibilities:

To appoint an adjudicator to deal with disagreements and in accordance with the regulations reply within 2 months or any extension provided by the regulations.

- To acknowledge complaints within 10 working days of receipt of the completed documentation.
- To review and provide updates to the member in a timely manner.

- To notify the employer of decisions and / or appeals as requested.
- To listen sympathetically to complaints and respond to them within 10 days.

#### Performance monitoring and reporting – our responsibilities:

We will report on our key performance indicators (KPIs) to the Pensions Committee and the Pension Board. This will provide a mechanism for service level review and recognition of best practice.

We will seek to work closely with employers to:

- Identify areas of poor performance.
- Provide the necessary training and development.
- To put in place appropriate processes to improve the level of service in the future.

#### Reporting breaches – our responsibilities:

To have procedures to be followed in relation to reporting breaches of the law to The Pensions Regulator.

To report data breaches to the Information Commissioner's Office (ICO). To report all breaches to the <u>Pensions Committee</u> and the <u>Pension Board</u>.

#### EMPLOYERS' RESPONSIBILITIES

#### Employers' general responsibilities:

To support us in engaging with our members and prospective members, making it clear that Worcestershire Pension Fund is not able to provide financial advice.

To be familiar with the HR and Payroll guides available at <a href="http://www.lgpsregs.org/resources/guidesetc.php">http://www.lgpsregs.org/resources/guidesetc.php</a>

To provide us with up to date and correct information e.g. re an employer's covenant as and when requested in accordance with our timescales and data protection / pensions regulations, retaining information about employees in line with our <u>Personal Data Retention Guidance for</u> <u>Employers</u> and our guidance about the McCloud remedy where if no data is available assumptions that employees could challenge would have to be made.

For larger bulk estimates, to make requests via the spreadsheet template provided by us and to give us as much notice in advance, for example when any redundancy exercises are planned.

To operate controlled, authorised processes and procedures.

To familiarise themselves with our:

- <u>Policy Statement on Communications</u>.
- <u>Funding Strategy Statement</u>, investment pots and arrangements for ceasing participation in the Fund.
- Governance Policy Statement.
- Investment Strategy Statement.
- <u>Actuarial valuation report</u>.
- <u>Climate Change Risk Strategy</u>
- <u>Climate-Related Financial Disclosures</u>

To comply with <u>the Pensions Regulator's</u> requirements of employers offering pensions to their employees, including automatic enrolment and data quality.

To publish and forward to us an up-to-date employer policy statement for all <u>employer</u> <u>discretions under the LGPS regulations</u>.

#### Financial and data obligations - employer responsibilities:

To calculate, collect and pay us no later than the 19<sup>th</sup> day of the month following the period of deductions:

- All employee contributions deducted from payroll (excluding AVCs).
- Employer contributions.
- Any deficit lump sum payments due monthly.
- To on the same day as making a payment provide us with the <u>Contribution Remittance</u> <u>Payover Form PCF1 spreadsheet and a monthly CARE spreadsheet</u>.
- To pay all rechargeable items to the Fund on receipt of the invoice within the timescales specified.
- To provide us with accurate member data, using I-Connect as our primary method or the monthly CARE spreadsheet if not yet set up on I-Connect
- To provide us with the annual Covenant data we require.

# Annual return, actuarial valuations when being undertaken and annual benefit statements - employer responsibilities:

To ensure we receive accurate year end information to 31 March through the <u>Year End</u> <u>Spreadsheet</u> by 30 April.

To submit accompanying paperwork detailing this together with payment or a formal request for a refund should there be any under / over payment discovered whilst reconciling.

To provide any additional information that may be requested to produce annual benefit statements for service up until 31 March in each particular year by the 30 April each year.

To ensure that all errors highlighted from the annual contribution and pensionable pay posting exercise are responded to and corrective action taken promptly.

#### New starts - employer responsibilities:

To ensure that pension information is included as part of any new employment induction process, in contracts of employment and appointment letters.

To ensure that all employees subject to contractual admissions are bought into the LGPS from their relevant start date.

To provide us with accurate new member data, using the <u>Pension Starter Form</u> / interface within 4 weeks or at the members' start date or within 14 days of the first time the new employee is included on the employer's payroll run.

To provide each new employee with a link to our <u>Guide to the LGPS</u> and a <u>Pension Starter Form</u> with their contract of employment.

To determine the appropriate contribution rate (whether individually or by an automated process on payroll) and as soon as is reasonably practicable, notify the employee of the contribution rate which is to be deducted from the employee's pensionable pay and the date from which the rate will become payable. It is for the employer to determine the method by which the notification is given to the employee, but the notification must contain a statement giving the address from which further information about the decision may be obtained. The notification must also notify the employee of the right to appeal, including the process and timescales involved. Furthermore, the correct employee contribution rate should be applied and (if appropriate) adjusted throughout the year according to the employer's Policy Statement on discretions.

**Important note:** Where there is more than one contract of employment with the same employer, each membership shall be maintained separately and notified to us as above.

#### Changes in circumstances for employee members - employer responsibilities:

To ensure that we are informed of any changes in the circumstances of employees, by updating I-Connect or completing the Employer Notification of Changes relating to Pensionable Employment Form / Leavers Form / Ill Health Form / 50:50 cancel form / 50:50 Option Form / etc. within 4 weeks of the change. Changes include:

- Name.
- Marital status.
- NI number.
- Contractual hours.
- Any remuneration changes due to promotion and down grading.
- Full time equivalent pensionable pay according to the pre 2014 definition.
- Actual pensionable pay (including overtime/additional hours) in 100/100 and 50/50 according to the post 2014 definition (CARE).
- Employee contribution rate.
- Employee number and / or post number.
- Date joined LGPS (if adjusted).
- Confirmation of 50/50 or 100/100 entry.
- Additional Voluntary Contributions (AVC) contributions.
- Additional Pension Contributions (APC).
- Notification of Flexible Retirement.
- Address change.

To apply assumed pensionable pay (APP) for pension purposes during periods of reduced or nil pay as a result of sickness, injury, or relevant child related leave (i.e. ordinary maternity, paternity or adoption leave or paid shared parental leave, and any paid additional maternity or adoption leave). **Important note:** If the employee receives no pay, employer contributions should still be paid.

To calculate and provide to the member the APP amount should an employee wish to purchase an Additional Pension Contributions (APC) or a Shared Cost Additional Pension Contribution (SCAPC) contract to buy back the pension 'lost' during the absence, **Important note:** before a period of absence employers must bring to the attention of the employee that they can buy back the 'lost' pension and also direct employees to the APC calculator at: <u>https://www.lgpsmember.org/more/apc/index.php</u>

#### Retirement estimates - employer responsibilities:

To submit a request using the <u>Request for Estimate Form</u>. Each form must be signed by an authorising officer.

To provide pay and other relevant information such as details of the maximum strain the employer can pay given other exit payments and whether the exit cap is applicable requested by us either on an individual basis within 10 working days of the request, or for bulk / group requests by an agreed timescale with us.

#### Transfer in / out estimates - employer responsibilities:

To submit a request.

To provide pay and other relevant information requested by us either on an individual basis within 10 working days of the request, or for bulk / group requests by an agreed timescale with us.

#### Divorce estimates - employer responsibilities:

To provide pay and other relevant information requested by us either on an individual basis within 10 working days of the request, or for bulk / group requests, by an agreed timescale with us.

#### Outsourcing estimates - employer responsibilities:

To provide pay and other relevant information requested by us either on an individual basis within 10 working days of the request, or for bulk / group requests, by an agreed timescale with us.

Re staff transfers e.g. outsourcings, in line with our <u>guidance notes on transfers of staff between</u> our employers including academy conversions to ensure early notification / liaison with us when considering an outsourcing exercise which affects members / eligible members of the LGPS.

#### Actual retirements - employer responsibilities:

To within 5 working days submit the appropriate <u>Leavers Form</u> and details such as the maximum strain the employer can pay given other exit payments and whether the exit cap is applicable to us as soon as the information is available. N.B. The Leavers Form must be completed fully and

be signed by an authorising officer, as it confirms the information required to enable the benefits to be calculated and the employer's decision as to the type of benefit that is to be paid to the member.

To include a reference in the retirement letter to remind employees to advise us directly if they subsequently move house so that we can maintain contact with the retired member.

#### Ill health retirements - employer responsibilities:

To determine whether an ill health benefit award is to be made, based on medical evidence and the criteria set in the LGPS regulations.

After obtaining an opinion from an Independent Registered Medical Practitioner (IRMP) on the appropriate <u>Medical Certificate</u>, determine which tier (1, 2, or 3) is to be awarded.

Submit the completed <u>Medical Certificate and Leavers Form</u> to us with all related paperwork and a copy of the notice letter issued to the member (which must confirm the level of ill health benefits awarded and the appeal information).

To keep a record of and at 18 months review all Tier 3 ill health retirements, arranging as appropriate a further <u>medical certificate</u>.

To notify us to recover any overpayment of benefits following a discovery of gainful employment.

To include a reference in the dismissal letter to remind employees to advise us directly if they subsequently move house, so that we can maintain contact with the retired member.

To consider taking out <u>ill health liability insurance</u> (IHLI).

#### Members leaving employment before retirement - employer responsibilities:

To notify us using the <u>Leavers Form</u>, ensuring all relevant information is included on the form, within 5 working days of the members leave date.

To include a reference in the acknowledgement letter to remind employees to advise us directly if they subsequently move address so that we can maintain our contact with the retired member.

To send us notification of any eligible employees subject to automatic enrolment, who opt out of the LGPS within 6 weeks of joining.

To check the date on all <u>Opt out forms</u> is not earlier than the end of the current pay period.

#### Deferred members - employer responsibilities:

To keep adequate records of the following for members who leave the LGPS with deferred benefits, as early payment of benefits may be required:

- Name.
- Last known address.
- NI Number.

- Payroll number.
- Date of birth.
- Last job information including job description.
- Salary details.
- Date and reason for leaving.

To determine, following an application from the former employee to have their deferred benefits paid early, whether or not they are eligible for early payment on ill health grounds in line with the criteria set in the relevant (NB these depend on date of leaving) regulations and after seeking suitable medical opinion from an IRMP.

To determine whether any actuarial reduction can be waived on compassionate grounds in accordance with the employer's <u>Policy Statement on discretions</u>.

#### Death in service - employer responsibilities:

To inform us immediately of an employee who has died – this can initially by telephone or email to enable us to calculate or cease benefits.

Any notification of death in service should within 5 working days be followed with the receipt of a completed <u>Leavers Form</u>.

#### Death of pensioner / deferred member - employer responsibilities:

Although employers have no responsibilities on the death of these members, it would be helpful if they could help when a dependent contacts them by advising the dependent to contact us.

# Additional voluntary contributions (AVCs), Additional Pension Contributions (APCs) and shared cost APCs (SCAPCs) - employer responsibilities:

To communicate to employees the option of SCAPCs to cover periods of 'lost pensions' and the timeframe they must elect to purchase a SCAPC. **Important note:** Members must elect to make APCs within 30 days of returning to work following the absence, but employers have the discretion to extend this period. This should be laid out in the employer's Policy Statement on discretions.

#### Adjudication of disagreements – employer responsibilities:

Under regulation 72 of the <u>LGPS 2013 Regulations</u>, any decisions made by an employer affecting an employee's rights to membership, or entitlement to benefits must be made as soon as is reasonably practicable and notified to the employee in writing including a reference to their right to appeal in line with regulation 73 of the LGPS regulations.

An employer must notify us of a decision made under Regulation 72. Every notification must:

Specify the rights under Stage 1 and Stage 2 of the appeals procedure quoting the appropriate regulations.

Specify the time limits within the appeal, under either stage, which apply.

Specify to whom an application for appeal must be made to. For first stage appeals this must be the nominated person of the employer who made the decision. For second stage appeals this will be the appointed person at the Administering Authority.

Employers must notify us of any first stage appeals they receive.

Each employer is required to nominate and name the person to whom applications under stage 1 of the Appeals Procedure should be made.